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Bill/Resolution No.: SB 2336

1 A. State fiscal effect: Identify the state fiscal effect and the fiscal effect on agency appropriations compared to funding 
levels and appropriations anticipated under current law.

2017-2019 Biennium 2019-2021 Biennium 2021-2023 Biennium

General Fund Other Funds General Fund Other Funds General Fund Other Funds

Revenues $452,000,000

Expenditures

Appropriations

1 B. County, city, school district and township fiscal effect: Identify the fiscal effect on the appropriate political  
subdivision.

2017-2019 Biennium 2019-2021 Biennium 2021-2023 Biennium

Counties

Cities

School Districts

Townships

2 A. Bill and fiscal impact summary: Provide a brief summary of the measure, including description of the provisions 
having fiscal impact (limited to 300 characters).

SB 2336 increases the oil extraction tax rate.

B. Fiscal impact sections: Identify and provide a brief description of the sections of the measure which have fiscal  
impact. Include any assumptions and comments relevant to the analysis.

Section 1 of SB 2336 permanently raises the oil extraction tax rate from 5% to 6.5%, effective January 1, 2020. It 
also removes the "high price" trigger which would have increased the oil extraction tax rate from 5% to 6% at times 
of high oil prices.

3. State fiscal effect detail: For information shown under state fiscal effect in 1A, please:

A. Revenues: Explain the revenue amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each revenue type and fund 
affected and any amounts included in the executive budget.

If enacted, SB 2336 is expected to increase special fund and tribal revenue by an estimated $452 million in the 
2019-21 biennium.

B. Expenditures: Explain the expenditure amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each agency, line item, and 
fund affected and the number of FTE positions affected.

C. Appropriations: Explain the appropriation amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each agency and fund 
affected. Explain the relationship between the amounts shown for expenditures and appropriations. Indicate whether 
the appropriation or a part of the appropriation is included in the executive budget or relates to a continuing 
appropriation.
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Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution: 

 
A BILL for an Act to amend and reenact section 57-51.1-02 of the North Dakota Century 
Code, relating to the oil extraction tax rate; and to provide an effective date. 
 

Minutes:                                                 Attachments:8 

 
Chairman Cook: Called the hearing to order on SB 2336.  
 
Senator Merrill Piepkorn: Introduced SB 2336. See attachment #1. I am sure each of you 
in your other committees have people asking for funds for different things. For example, at 
the end of last week, there was a group looking for funds to keep aquatics nuisance species 
out of the state. They were asking for $2.5 million. Which would not be hard to accumulate. 
In order to put us even with MN, MT, it would cost about $20 million. UND and NDSU are 
asking for money for research. This extraction of oil tax would not necessarily fix the problem, 
but it would go a long way in relieving some of these. Our state’s chief justice of the supreme 
court is asking for funding. There are tons of others asking for funds as well. Restoring this 
oil tax isn’t a bad idea. The people in this business will tell you that it is the price per barrel 
that really drives this action on the Bakken. However, this raise will put more stress on the 
oil business, no one is denying that. Individual rights owners will also pay more. The oil 
business has been very beneficial to the state of ND. My hometown of ND has a lot of 
permanent jobs in which those oil people appreciate. We also need to harvest this benefit as 
people, not just the businesses. This business will most likely be here for a long time. There 
may be threats. The Bakken is productive and I do not believe that this 1.5 restoration is 
enough for people to pull out of business. I urge you to keep our everyday citizens in mind 
when you are debating this bill. I urge you to pass this bill.  
 
Senator Unruh: You have the effective tax rate here. I suggest you google effective tax rates 
so you understand why ND’s number is at 8.3%. My focus is on the bottom where you have 
Alaska. I believe they change to the higher rate around 2013. Do you know what happened 
to their state government and funding at that time? Also, what happened to oil production 
rates? 
 
Senator Piepkorn: I do not. I do know they have $61 billion in their savings account.  
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Chairman Cook: Alaska’s savings account was started in 1976 and Alaska owns most of 
the oil in the state. ND has private mineral owners that own the oil. Alaska has a direct 
advantage.  
 
Senator Piepkorn: I did vote to give those mineral rights.  
 
Chairman Cook: You talked a lot about action that was taken in 2015 and that justifies what 
you are introducing today. It is very unusual that we see a piece of legislation that loos 
backwards. Do you recognize that that was an increase in taxes on the oil industry?  
 
Senator Piepkorn: There were two parts to the bill. One was when we eliminated the trigger 
and one was when we lowered the tax to 5%. 
 
Chairman Cook: That was a tax increase on the oil industry do you agree?  
 
Senator Piepkorn: I do not understand that. I would appreciate it if you explained that to me.  
 
Chairman Cook: We eliminated the triggers which would respectively lower the extraction 
tax from 6.5 to 0. 0% tax is going to raise a lot less money than 5%. That is obviously a tax 
increase. Do we agree?  
 
Senator Piepkorn: Yes.  
 
Chairman Cook: Do you have any understanding of how much of a tax increase that was?  
 
Senator Piepkorn: I simply just disagree with the language. I understand the effect. I know 
what could’ve happened.  
 
Chairman Cook: If we put a fiscal note or a retroactive clause on this bill and put the triggers 
back in place, this bill would have a fiscal note. That would tell us exactly what the tax 
increase would be.  
 
Senator Piepkorn: If we started from here without going back that far and it had a fiscal not, 
it would have one of a positive $600 million per biennium.  
 
Chairman Cook: So that is another tax increase? 
 
Senator Piepkorn: Yes. That is what we are asking for.  
 
Senator Meyer: Have you ever met with the oil industry to get their thoughts on this bill?  
 
Senator Piepkorn: No I have not. 
 
Senator Patten: Are you aware of any other industries that are taxed on gross production in 
the state? 
 
Senator Piepkorn: No. My general understanding is that the production tax replaces what 
would be a property tax.  
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Senator Patten: If it was assessed as a property tax, then where would the revenue stream 
go?  
 
Senator Piepkorn: I do not know? What other industries are taxed in the way the oil is on 
production and such  
 
Chairman Cook: Senator we will ask the questions here.  
 
Senator Patten: I am assuming that because you are asking for this tax, these are ways that 
you are directing to our critical need of funding?  
 
Senator Piepkorn: I am not making that judgement at all. I am just pointing out that this is 
where it goes. It is up to the committee to decide if those are good destinations for the money.  
 
Senator Patten: So no judgment on your part regarding the beneficiary of the taxes as far 
as their need?  
 
Senator Piepkorn: That is correct. 
 
Senator Patten: It has been recently determined that 50% of the state’s revenue is 
generated from oil and gas tax revenue. That is not including the benefits of the sales tax. 
Do you have any concerns with tying so much of the state revenue stream to one specific 
industry and one specific tax?  
 
Senator Piepkorn: I think that is a concern of everyone in this body and in ND. That is why 
if we could use some of this money to fund innovation and research, that would be an 
investment that would take the load off of the oil and industry business.  
 
Senator Patten: With that in mind, would you be an advocate of other tax revenue to support 
those goals?  
 
Senator Piepkorn: I think why wouldn’t we look at that? Yes.  
 
Senator Unruh: I have a hard time sorting out the numbers we go in this chart here in the 
charts because we are pressing the issue. You look back at the 4 years and you are only 
picking pieces of the revenues that we either would have or would not have received. I need 
to take a closer look at the numbers to try and figure out which numbers he has here that 
would have applied. 
 
Chairman Cook: If I may interrupt you, Senator Unruh, since we passed the bill in 2015, 
there has been 2 parties arguing the numbers. We will continue to argue them for a long time 
as long as there are two different views on this issue. The bottom line is that in 2015 we 
passed the bill to extract the triggers which would devastated our income has it gone into 
effect. We lowered the rate. The original bill would’ve lowered it even more. If we had not 
compromised, the oil industry would’ve moved south. We would not need this many jobs.  
 
Senator Piepkorn: The numbers are what they are. I agree.  
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Senator Kannianen: When you talk about the land owners, and it being small numbers out 
of their checks. As far as looking at fiscal notes and depending on the values, it adds up to a 
big number on the average lease. 15-18% of that maybe belongs to the loyalty owners. Are 
you concerned with the $100 million out of mineral owner’s pockets?  
 
Senator Piepkorn: I guess you could say I am concerned about it. I spoke with mineral 
owners who are very against it and with others who are happy to contribute their benefit to 
the state. That is why I mentioned it.  
 
Senator Piepkorn: I have two testimonial letters in favor of the bill from people who could 
not make it here because of the weather. See attachment #2.  
 
Senator Unruh: There is a piece of history missing in this testimony. That is that Governor 
Sinner signed the bill that put the triggers in place that we removed in 2015. I would ask him 
why he excluded that.  
 
Senator Piepkorn: I have another testimony in favor of this bill from Birgit Pruess. See 
attachment #3.  
 
Waylon Hedeggard, President AFL-CIO:  Testified in favor of the bill. ND faces a lot of 
problems. Our school our suffering. I door knock union member and talk about their issues 
as well as the doors of school teachers. When you ask them what is effecting them, 80% of 
the school teachers say behavioral issues and school safety. I have had conversations where 
they are in tears because they are afraid to go to school. This needs a solution. I am a union 
boiler maker. I have spent many years repairing power plants across the state. I have made 
all my money in the fossil fuel industry. Over the next 10-20 years, that industry faces a 
change. Things are moving. We are going to see plant closures and stress on communities. 
So many of these communities and people rely on these industries. At the heart of all these 
solutions, is the need for revenue to help. I support this tax increase because I believe ND is 
facing serious issues in the next several years and we will need money to fix them.  
 
Patrick Hart: Testified in favor of the bill. I am not a lobbyist. I do not have oil behind me. I 
am standing here to ask that you go forward on this bill with a do pass. I am asking that you 
set this tax back to the way it was set in 1980, before I was born. There has been a lot of low 
revenue. That state has seen staff and service reductions. It has led to a state government 
that isn’t as easy or friendly to deal with. Many of you, feel that this is an additional tax and 
that it would be seen by a constituency as an overreach. Many of my friends and family have 
seen their property tax increase 10-15% year over year. We are seeing are reduction of tax 
given to oil companies. Many are based out of state. In the late session of 2015, there was 
a proposal to remove this trigger and lower the extraction rate. This has and will continue to 
lead to a loss of revenue for many years to come. As you mow this decision over I am left 
wondering, if not them, then who? We have to make sausage as you said. If we increase fuel 
tax, that will be felt by me. If we increase property tax, that will be felt by landowners and 
farmers. Increasing income tax is felt by residents. Increasing oil extraction tax on a one-time 
harvest, they won’t leave. The market will drive their prices up and down. 1.5% isn’t a lot of 
money. I am asking for a do pass on this bill.  
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Senator Kannianen: Can you imagine what things would be like if the oil business had never 
come to our state?  
 
Patrick Heart: The oil field is wild. There is a lot of good and bad that came. Infrastructure 
needed repair. There is mental health instability. It is a good thing for the state, but with good 
comes bad.  
 
Mary Jenson, ND Farmer’s Union: Testified in favor of the bill.  
 
Senator Patten: You do have some people who are royalty owners as well so they are being 
effected, 
 
Mary Jenson, ND Farmer’s Union: Our policy is states that we support the reinstatement 
of the oil extraction tax of 6.5% rather than the current 5%. We do support the current 
elimination of the trigger. I will stand for questions.  
 
Senator Patten: With Farmer’s Union, you obviously have people who are loyalty owners as 
well. They are being affected by this as well. When you took your position, did you consider 
their interest as well.  
 
Mary Jenson: Our policy is adopted by our members, so any issues would’ve come up at 
our convention when it is adopted.  
 
Andrew Alexis Varvel: Testified in favor of the bill. See attachment #4. One of the greatest 
concerns is not having enough employees in the state. We need to understand that if the oil 
and gas industry wants to have more qualified employees, the money has to come from 
somewhere. A lot of this boom comes from the Core Library at UND. The oil industry takes 
credit for what has been provided by the tax payers of ND through institutional subsidy. We 
need to make sure our buildings and faculty are taken care of. I am also proposing a 
constitutional overhaul of higher education governments which would establish a unified ND 
university with the 4 major campuses. It would be helping regional equilibrium and mean an 
expansion of opportunities for job training. If this were to even pass as a constitutional 
amendment, it would require cooperation from the oil and gas industry to make sure the job 
training gets paid for. I will stand for questions.  
 
Chairman Cook: How much money did Harold Ham donate to the Geological unit of UND. 
 
Andrew Varvel: I believe around $12 Million. 
 
Chairman Cook: Any further testimony in favor? Any testimony opposed? 
 
Finn Dooley, Lobbyist, Salt Contaminated Water Council: Testified in opposition of the 
bill. I have a handout. See attachment #5. I have caught some of my most important 
experiences connecting with extractive industries as well as other things. Supporting and 
further discussions of this issue will require a lot more insight than what has been given thus 
far. I would like to point to the past. A man suggested what could be done with the lands after 
the mining. We committed to 100% reclamation. I am handing out a study that was funded 
by you. This illustrates the failure to reclaim land that is impacted by salt. I have seen brine 
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being dumped on multiple occasions. I saw the death of the estuaries from south intrusion. 
The salt is the problem. We have not begun to count the acres. This is an excellent start. In 
the study, we have a description of pits that were once called evaporation pits. I am 
suggesting that we need to look at what will be left if we haven’t counted the acres and began 
the reclamation that was typical of the coal industry. That is my purpose in being here. We 
have a webpage; www.saltedlands.org. If you look at this study, you will realize that 3 
counties have dramatic consequences of destroyed land. The cost of restoring them is a 
daunting thing. Ed Murphy has warned us about these salts. He came to a hearing in Minot 
and that prompted the funding to the beginning of the counting of the acres. I want to say 
that as a grandfather, I am grateful for the oil industry. I kept my fingers and didn’t get killed. 
The oil industry has brought life to ND. My proposition is to have more life and more jobs to 
repair the damage done by mishandle brines.  
 
Preston Page, Dakota Energy Advisors: Testified in opposition of the bill. We are proud to 
be a part of this industry. As the economics of the development are turbulent, we are at 1.2 
million barrels of production today. That is dependent on continual development and drilling. 
For that to take place, oil wells have to be economic. An additional 15% of gross proceeds 
puts the development of ND in harm’s way. We have $50 oil, 10%, 20% for royalties which 
leaves us at $35. New wells today are probably a $9 million. That divided by 20-25 is 360-
425 thousand barrels to pay out for that one well. The Bakken has about 55 townships. The 
Williston basin expands 250 townships across ND where that development is in question. 
That is the more long term view that we need to be looking at is maintaining the production 
we have. If we stop drilling today, in 12 months from now, our numbers predict that oil would 
drop 30-35%. If you take Divide county, it has about 30-35 townships. Every section of land 
has oil. Prior to 2015 before the drop in prices. There were 736 wells drilled from 2010-2015 
in that county. Since 2016, there have been 36 wells dropped. We need to take a long term 
view of the industry. We are moving with 15,000 wells drilled since 2005 in ND, into more 
terminal declines of these wells. We have our development and now they are in their long 
term production. The economics are continually increasing. Production is dropping and now 
they are facing an additional 15% in taxes. That uncertainty makes the industry uncertain of 
capitol divestments as we are competing in ND for the capital from OK and others. 15% is a 
significant increase. That burden lies on us. I am a young guy who is very proud to be in ND> 
My income is derived from oil and gas. We are very happy to be here. I will answer any 
questions. 
 
Chairman Cook: Repeat for me the production from Alaska and their numbers please.  
 
Preston Page: It is about 600,000 today. 
 
Senator Patten: Could you expand on when you talked about the Bakken and what would 
happen in those areas compared to those 4 counties.  
 
Preston Page: We think there are 55 townships. That would produce 700,000-800,000 
barrels of oil per well on average. With the lower acreage, that is where you are going to be 
hit hard. I am directly involved in 120 wells that have been drilled since 2012. We are 
producing much lower production rates. A 15% jump is significant. Our wells produced on 
average, 15 barrels a day. There are burdens to be paid. We are in a difficult position but to 
continue to tax the oil and gas industry is not a long term solution.  

http://www.saltedlands.org/
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Senator Dotzenrod: Will you take me through the math again? 
 
Preston Page: We took 30%; 10% for taxes, 20% for royalties, we are $50 minus 30% which 
is $35. The cost per well to pump is $10-$15 per barrel. We are $20-$25 net profit per barrel. 
To drill that well, it probably cost $9 million. That divided by 25 is 360,000 barrels. The core 
of the Bakken can sustain that. The core is getting drilled very fast. In two years, I think you 
are going to be having a different location regarding where those rigs are located.  
 
Chairman Cook: Before you start, Mr. Ness, will you answer the question that I asked 
Senator Piepkorn? What would’ve the fiscal note be if we made this retroactive with the 
triggers on.  
 
Ron Ness, ND Petroleum Council: $942 million will take it.  
 
Ron Ness: Testified in opposition of the bill. See attachment #6. A lot of the discussion today 
has been focused on the needs of the state and the revenues. If the taxes are so dire why 
would we just tax one segment of an industry. It seems like a revenue situation and one that 
I will offer a solution for. We should look at the big picture. Had the legislation not have taken 
that action late in that session, after all the rainy day funds, where would we have gone for 
the money. What taxes would have to been raised had the legislature not taken that action. 
Some who opposed the bill suggested it was a giveaway. The new oil was headed at $90 
per barrel. The triggers would never hit. Those who think they know what the oil market is 
going to do, are usually wrong. Six months late, those triggers did hit, and they stayed on for 
30 months. If those triggers were in place today, they would’ve been off for about 7 months. 
We would already be 2 months back to 5 months to put those triggers back on. Your budget 
process and every bill you have before you today, you would have 2 budgets. This budget 
and then the budget if the triggers would hit. We watched this happen for 30 years. The 1980s 
was a very dire time for our state. Few of us were able to find jobs. North Dakota is at about 
67 rigs, Texas is at 517, OK is at 126, New Mexico is 112 rigs operating. The concept in 2015 
was to create a long term plan.  
 
Chairman Cook: We all understand the consequences of taxes. When we talk about the oil 
industry we look at rig count and production levels. I understand how important capital is. Is 
there a way we can measure the amount of capital available? 
 
Ron Ness: We met the capital by looking at the investment in a natural gas infrastructure $3 
billion right now. $18 billion over the past 8 years. Sixty-seven rigs require you to attract $20 
million per day of cap X. You are going to see a retraction. People aren’t leaving but they can 
easily transfer rigs. If you look at the drop of production in November, that happened because 
of uncertainty in the industrial commission level in terms of where they going to meet their 
gas capture targets. They all began holding back on their completions. Production numbers 
dropped. We need to think about the mineral owners out there. Their revenue streams have 
gone down. We have always used the drilling rig as the prime barometer of industry. We 
another one which is the completions per month. That is your capital.  
 
Chairman Cook: I have always looked at sales tax collections going to the state for every 
new well that is complete as around $250,000. Is that a safe figure to use?  
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Ron Ness: You are exactly right and costs have gone up. Having the month of November, 
there were 40 less completions.  
 
Senator Dotzenrod: The cost to drill a well in the Bakken requires a lot of work and 
technology. I understand that they found some ways to bring that cost per well down after 
the slow down. Do you have any numbers on that? Is that true? 
 
Ron Ness: You are correct; the overall cost went down. As with anything the inflation has 
gone up. How significant this information is great? People ask what the impact of weather is 
going to do this week as far as production and if it will lower it because of the weather that is 
projected. If they do a report of how much this is going to drop because of the weather, what 
is that going to do to the world today? We prepare for that today. When we think our 
production is going to increase, that matters to you when you fill your gas tanks this spring. 
The decisions you make here also make a big impact. We are now part of the world market 
and people watch what happens here.  
 
John Olson: Watford City wanted to send someone to testify in opposition of this bill but they 
wouldn’t because of the weather so I will hand out their testimony. Distributed opposition 
testimony for Vawnita Best, Watford City. See attachment #7. I want to point you to the 
paragraph that stresses the breakdown of taxes from oil and gas and the core 4 counties that 
are involved.  
 
Arik Spencer, President and CEO, Greater ND Chamber: Testified in opposition of the bill. 
We want ND to have the best business climate in the nation. When we look at increasing this 
tax, it concerns me when we want to raise to the top in terms of the tax rate for the oil industry. 
Oil state is dependent on it. We just saw a report that 50% of the tax revenue has come from 
the oil and gas industry. With that, I urge you to not pass this bill.  
 
Peter Masset Junior: Testified in opposition of the bill. This is a proposed 15% tax increase 
to the oil and extraction tax. This increase would put an additional impact on the oil industry 
here in ND. It would also shrink the core area of the Bakken. Our oil industry pays a huge 
portion of the state budget. Hinging our future to one industry will not be good for the long 
term. If we believe there are shortcomings in the tax area, we should be looking at all the 
industries, not just one.   
 
Jason Ulmer, CEO Bison Plains Energy: Testified in opposition of the bill. We are involved 
in oil and gas leasing, mineral ownership, and non-operated working interest positions. A 
15% increase will have negative impact on my business and others in the Bakken. ND is 
already a high tax state. We are going to be at 11% where the national average is 6.5%. We 
are nearly double the average. The national association of royalty owners has found that the 
typical mineral owner is a woman of 60 years or older, receiving a little more than $600 per 
month. This is the person we will be increasing the taxes on. In addition, the higher tax insure 
the less economic fringe areas will not be developed. Oil wells decline as time goes on. 
Without new production, we will see our production decrease dramatically. We need to attract 
these dollars to keep new wells drilling new wells in the new areas because the core of the 
Bakken will be drilled out soon. Since the 2015 tax change, we are at $942 million in a time 
when we really needed those dollars. The decrease in taxes resulted in that money we 
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needed. My worry is that we will become too reliant on these tax revenues; setting up budgets 
that cannot be met if these operators leave. Oil wells decline without drilling new ones. The 
places left to drill new ones are not as good of areas as the places we already have drilled. 
 
Senator Dotzenrod: One of the arguments you hear from people supporting this bill is that 
the Bakken grew and thrived and was booming when we had the 6.5% tax. Now it sounds 
like that is almost like that never happened.  
 
Jason Ulmer: If you look at the maps today of where the rigs are; if you go to New Town 
and draw a 60-mile radius, that is where all the rigs are.  
 
Senator Dotzenrod: You are saying that if we go back to the environment we had when the 
Bakken was thriving, the tax environment would be a disaster.  
 
Chairman Cook: Senator Dotzenrod, what was the price of oil during the boom?  
 
Senator Dotzenrod: The price of oil was very good.  
 
Chairman Cook: It is easy to pay 6.5% in taxes when the price of oil is $90 per barrel.  
 
Chairman Cook: Any further testimony? We will close the hearing on SB 2336. 
 
Additional testimony and data was sent to the clerk after the hearing. See attachment 
#8.  
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A BILL for an Act to amend and reenact section 57-51.1-02 of the North Dakota Century 
Code, relating to the oil extraction tax rate; and to provide an effective date. 
 

Minutes:                                                 Attachments: 0 

 
Chairman Cook: Called the committee to order on SB 2336.  
 
Senator Meyer: Moved a Do Not Pass. 
 
Senator Unruh: Seconded. 
 
Chairman Cook: Called for discussion. 
 
Senator Dotzenrod: This is a black and white thing. I supported leaving the 6.5 intact in the 
’15 session and I will continue to express that view. I will be voting in favor of passing 2336 
but we don’t need to spend a lot of time arguing the issue.  
 
A Roll Call Vote Was Taken. 5 yeas, 1 nay, 0 absent. 
 
Motion Carried. 
 
Senator Patten will carry the bill.  
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